UNITED
NATIONS C R C

Di str.
GENERAL

CRC/ C/ SR 481
28 Septenber 1998

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COW TTEE ON THE RI GHTS OF THE CHI LD
Ni net eent h sessi on
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 481st MEETI NG

Held at the Pal ais des Nations, CGeneva,
on Wednesday, 23 Septenber 1998, at 10 a.m

Chai rperson: M ss MASON
CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES (conti nued)

Initial report of Ecuador (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 98-18167 (E)



CRC/ C/ SR. 481
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.05 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES (agenda item 4) (continued)

Initial report of Ecuador (continued) (CRC/C/3/Add.44; HRI/CORE/ 1/ Add. 7;
CRC/C/QECU 1, witten replies of the Governnent of Ecuador to the questions
raised in the list of issues)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, the nenbers of the del egation of
Ecuador resuned their places at the Conmmittee table.

2. M. GALLEGOS CHI RI BOGA (Ecuador), replying to three questions by

Ms. Pal me, said that he knew of no restriction on freedom of associ ation of
children or anyone el se in Ecuador, where it was a fundanmental right.
Secondly, children filing conplaints to the appropri ate organs were assisted
by the children's onbudsman. Over 30 NGOs were also active in that field, in
addition to associations of university students of |aw, medicine and
soci ol ogy, and, obviously, the social -worker network under the Juvenile

Court, as well as the Ecuadorian nedical systemof the Mnistry of Health.
Ecuador's | egal system endowed each city, town or parish with a politica
representative, who was basically in charge of |ocal adm nistration of
justice. The idea was for the national child welfare systemto be |inked
locally through the town halls within a decentralized system Thirdly,
regardi ng corporal punishnment, he referred the Commttee to paragraph 84 of
Ecuador's witten replies, where nmention was nmade of the National Ofice for
the Protection of Pupils under the education system There was also a

Di sci plinary System agai nst Abuse in Detention and Correction Centres.
Strenuous efforts were being deployed to eradi cate corporal punishnment, which
was |inked to a tradition of educational discipline not specific to Ecuador

A series of programmes were being sponsored by the National Institute for
Children and the Family (INFAA), in particular the Progranme of Citizen's
Action for Children. He referred Comrittee nenbers to question 15 of the list
of issues and paragraphs 79-89 of the witten replies. As he had previously
expl ai ned, corporal punishment in educational establishments was puni shable by
law. Further details with regard to Ms. Quedraogo's question concerning
children born out of wedl ock could be found on page 21 of the witten replies,
whi ch spelled out the constitutional provisions in that regard. They included
equal rights and opportunities, so that no |l egal stignma attached to such
children and they did not suffer discrimnation. Such obligations had | ong
existed in the legislation. There was also the National Social Devel opnment

Pl an, which sought to consolidate the honme as the place of a child s ultimte
protection to reduce unwanted pregnancies, and to eradicate illiteracy, the

i mplication being that the higher wonen's educational |evel, the fewer
unwant ed pregnanci es there would be.

3. Replying to Ms. Sardenberg, he said that, according to the statistics
provi ded in paragraph 134 of the witten replies, the indirect beneficiaries
of bilingual intercultural education stood at 750,000 rmen, women and children
as a result of State investnent worth 38,127,627,000 sucres in that type of
education, inparted by 5,095 teachers in 1,800 schools in 15 of the country's
22 provinces, a situation of which Ecuador could be proud. He had been unable
as yet to obtain statistics on the suicide rates within famlies, although the
overall suicide rate was relatively | ow.



CRC/ C/ SR. 481
page 3

4, Respondi ng to anot her question by Ms. Sardenberg, he said that Ecuador
was striving to elimnate enploynment of children as donestics. Under
Ecuadori an | egi sl ati on, donestic enploynment was subject to the usual socia
security requirenents, work inspections and so on. While the use of children
as donestic | abour was prohibited by law, it did exist in certain traditiona
sectors, especially rural areas, where children undertook donestic service to
add to fam ly incone.

5. Replying to Ms. Mbkhuane, he referred the Conmittee to paragraph 12

of the witten replies, where nention was nade of the efforts of the

Techni cal Secretariat of the Social Front, which included establishnent of the
“Si NI NEZ” specialized systemof indicators for children, coordinated with

UNI CEF and | NFAA as part of the Conprehensive System of Social Indicators.

The data avail able stenmed from specific studies on, for instance, sexua

abuse and child | abour, the results of which were contained in docunent
CRC/ C/ 3/ Add. 44. One inportant factor was the differing definition of the
English term “abuse” in Spanish and English. The topic had been dealt with in
par agraph 59 of the witten replies, which listed the National Socia

Devel opment Plan's activities with its Policies for Children ained at greater
interaction between the State and civil society in paragraph 79, which
referred to the Abused Child Care Networks; and in paragraphs 90 to 92, which
referred to the explicit prohibition of corporal punishment under the
Constitution, the Law against Violence to Wonen and the Fam |y, and the
Children's Code in connection with abuse in institutions and at school

6. Anot her question from Ms. Mkhuane concerned the education of disabled
children. A series of contingency programres were in place to integrate such
children into the educational process. Education policies had been

i npl enmented, enabling themto participate in nornmal life, especially student
life, although obviously nore so in urban areas where facilities were nore
easily accessible. The National Children's Council was the body responsible
for follow ng up adoption cases, with the assistance of social workers, who
nonitored the welfare of adopted children

7. He was uncertai n whether Ecuador's interpretation of child exploitation
within the famly was the sanme as that of the Conmttee. It could refer to
children dispatched to work in order to augnment the famly incone, or to
street children, who, according to UNICEF statistics, nunmbered a bare 1,000 in
Ecuador, nobst of whom were sent out to work and returned hone. The latter
category were the beneficiaries of government policies, including a

wi de-rangi ng progranme involving | NFAA and providing themw th education, and
their famlies with assistance. He assured Ms. Mooi that children born out
of wedl ock were al so supported under those programres, in addition to a State
policy of assistance to them and their nothers, including preventive measures
such as formal sex education. The questions concerning Ecuador's efforts to
el i m nate sexual and corporal abuse had al so been covered in his previous
answers, and by the witten reply to question 19 of the list of issues.

8. Wth regard to community support, he said that Ecuadorian society placed
a high value on community life, based initially on the isolated nature of

rural life, but ultimately on the manner in which Ecuadorian society had

devel oped. It was not only evident in traditional community interaction and
assistance to children and the elderly provided by, anmpong other institutions,



CRC/ ¢/ SR. 481
page 4

churches of all denom nations, but was al so encouraged by established | aws.
In a conbined State/community effort, many infrastructure projects such as
road construction, especially in Andean areas, were inplenmented through the
so-called “m nga” system of work by the entire community, which had extended
to the urban areas.

9. In reply to M. Kolosov, he said that Article 6 of the Constitution
established that sex between an adult and a minor girl - even with the
latter's consent - was a punishable offence. In response to Mss Mason's

guestion concerning the treatnent of abortion in Ecuadorian |aw, he explai ned
that it was penalized except in cases of incest or rape. On the subject of
children separated fromtheir parents, which Mss Mason had noted on a visit
to Cuenca, he explained that many Ecuadori an conmunities experienced

| arge-scale migration by nmen who, in order to provide for their famlies,
sought work in the devel oped countries - often entering themillegally, which
prevented themfromreturning. Gven the lack of famly reunification
programes, children were effectively deprived of their fathers, and sonetines
of their nothers, for econom c reasons and not from any desire to abandon
them Ecuador had established a system of comunication between mgrants and
their famlies, and no restrictions were inposed on noney sent from abroad or
i mports of goods. The Governnent had al so endeavoured to secure | ega

bil ateral agreenments with the host countries for exceptions that woul d enable
famlies to be reunified. A propos of M. Rabah's question concerning border
i mm grants, Ecuador facilitated the entry of spouses and children in the

i nverse situation of immigration, essentially involving refugees, not only in
border areas, but around the country, where there were | arge nuclei of
refugees. Despite Ecuador's own constraints, it welconed asyl um seekers.

Al t hough the nunbers involved were not |arge and did not pose a ngmjor problem
Ecuador did accord them special treatnent, had signed all the pertinent
agreenents, and actively supported refugee programres, including

awar eness-rai si ng programres.

10. The CHAI RPERSON expl ai ned that her reference to absent fathers had been
made in connection with State support under article 27 of the Convention, to
hel p parents provide for their children, to secure the recovery of

mai nt enance, and for the contracting of bilateral or nultilateral agreenments.
That was perhaps not possible in situations of unlawful em gration. However,
she wi shed to know what support the Governnent provided for children deprived
of one or both parents.

11. Ms. SARDENBERG expressed concern about the enploynent of children as
donestic | abour, a common phenonenon in Latin America, which violated many
articles of the Convention, frequently involving as it did sexual abuse or
denial of the right to education, and increasing the incidence of rape of
girls. Such children were often placed with famlies, in a form of
qguasi - adoption, but actually in order to work. In the light of the
Conmittee's attenpts to establish |inks between the Convention on the Rights
of the Child and the Convention on Al Fornms of Discrimnation against Wnen,
the situation was a telling exanple of the fact that discrimnation agai nst
wonen began with the abuse of girls. Registration posed a further problem
It had been acknow edged in the witten replies that the |law was as yet not
fully enforced owing, inter alia, to the difficulty of access in rural areas,
which resulted in a discrepancy between the nunbers of children born and those




CRC/ C/ SR. 481
page 5

regi stered. Since citizenship began at the nonent of registration, that

om ssion could result in serious problenms throughout a child s existence, such
as docunent forgery, disappearance and child traffic. |In that |ast regard,
despite M. Gallegos Chiriboga's reassurances, her sources insisted that the
case of the children who had di sappeared after being sent to Venezuel a was an
unsolved crime. She would therefore like to have, inmediately or at a later
date, any further information and any pertinent documentation on that case,
and to know whether it had been sol ved, whether some or all of the children
had been returned, and whether there was any nechani sm for cooperation with
nei ghbouring countries in that regard. She recommended Governnents to take
all measures needed to prevent such crinmes and protect children and nothers
froma situation that existed in nany countries.

12. Turning to inter-country adoption, she applauded the fact that Ecuador
had ratified the Hague Convention, which very few States parties had. One
problem facing ratification was the designation of a central authority. How
had Ecuador solved the problem and which was its central authority?

13. The wi despread practice of what could be described as a culture of child
abuse in famlies, schools and within the conmunity was very disturbing. She
urged the Government to give further consideration to the issue and to call on
non- gover nnent al organi zati ons (such as the Network for the Care of Abused
Children), society at |large and even international cooperation for assistance
in the effort to change such attitudes. The establishnent of the Comm ssion
for the Eradication of Child Abuse was a step in the right direction, but a
nore focused, detail ed approach was al so required.

14. The CHAI RPERSON agreed that in the |ight of paragraph 84 of the witten
replies there appeared to be a continuing problemin weaning people away from
the view that abuse of children was a normal and acceptabl e practice.

15. M. GALLEGOS CHI RI BOGA (Ecuador) said that paragraph 84 referred only to
the situation prevailing up to Decenber 1995. Later action to deal with
abuse, in particular the establishnent of the Comm ssion for the Eradication
of Child Abuse in the School, was described in paragraphs 85-90 of the witten
replies. It was inportant to recognize that the authorities were aware of the
probl em and were taking steps to deal with it.

16. Ms. OUEDRAOGO said she was still awaiting a reply on two points she had
rai sed previously. She had asked whether the reconmendations in the report
had been the subject of any discussion, and if so by whom In relation to
adoption, she had asked whet her adoption could be ended if a child had
problems with the adoptive fam |y and whether an adopted child had any
opportunity to find out its former identity.

17. On the issue of child abuse, punishment of children in schools appeared
to be condoned by fanmlies to the extent that sone parents expressly asked
teachers to nmake sure their children were punished properly. What action was
bei ng taken to prevent such abuse? Could children | odge conpl ai nts agai nst
teachers who had violated their rights in that respect? The teaching of human
rights in schools should ensure an end to such viol ations.



CRC/ C/ SR. 481
page 6

18. Ecuador had a good reputation as a country offering asylumto refugees.
She asked whether any formal franmework or specific procedures existed for the
protection of unacconpanied child refugees. Wre any official procedures in

pl ace to ensure reunification of famlies where possible?

19. Ms. PALME said that the answer to her earlier question with regard to
education for reproductive health had referred only to girls. However, she
had al so wi shed to know what was bei ng done to educate boys in that respect.
She al so considered that it was better to refer to equality, rather than
equity, between boys and girls, in view of the considerabl e discussion of the
concept that had taken place at the Beijing Conference.

20. M. RABAH, wel coming the information the del egation had provided in
relation to the Onbudsman, said he would like to know nore about how the
institution worked in practice. Wre any statistics available on its work, or
could any data be provided on the cases brought before it?

21. It was commonly the case throughout the world that children up to the
age of about 15 had nore leisure tinme than older children or adults and spent
much time in play. Did the education systemin Ecuador make any provision for
| ei sure activities for children, in particular for those living in

di sadvantaged communities with little access to sports facilities, playgrounds
or youth clubs?

22. What efforts were being made to ensure participation by children in
school life? Didthe training given to prinmary and secondary school teachers
i nclude any specific instruction on the rights of the child?

23. Ms. MBO said that the problens associated with teenage pregnancies
occurring out of wedl ock needed to be tackled by prompting adol escent heal th,
and in particular by ensuring the provision of adol escent-friendly
reproductive health and fam ly planning services. What special services were
avai l abl e to pregnant teenagers in Ecuador, bearing in mnd the fact that such
expectant nothers were still children thensel ves?

24. Anot her area of concern was the very high incidence of chronic

mal nutrition in children under the age of five. She asked whether a nationa
nutritional policy existed or if any conprehensive system of nmeasures was in
pl ace to conbat malnutrition

25. Ms. MXHUANE asked whet her any m ni num wage had been established for
children, in view of the fact that children under 14 years of age were found
in the | abour market in Ecuador. Had children any opportunity to | odge
conpl ai nts about the wages paid to thenf?

26. Ms. OUEDRAOGO, noting that Ecuador appeared to val ue education highly
said that the |arge increase in the school enrolnment rate seemed to indicate
that access to prinmary education was satisfactory. However, high repeat and
drop-out rates pointed to serious shortcomngs in the quality of the education
bei ng gi ven. What was the educational reform process doing to overcone those
short com ngs?




CRC/ C/ SR. 481
page 7

27. She asked how the Governnent was coping with the need to provide access
to education and school books free of charge and ensure paynent of teachers,
in view of the nmacroecononm c problems it faced. Wre teenage nmothers all owed
to continue their education? Did schoolchildren have any opportunity to give
their views before adoption of any decisions or sanctions relating to then?
What part did parents, especially parents who had had little education

t hemsel ves, take in the school life of their children?

28. M. KOLOSOV said he had sone serious concerns with regard to the
juvenile justice system and considered a strong reconmendati on on the subject
woul d be necessary. Paragraph 225 of the report gave evidence of some
cynicismon the subject, since it started by stating that mnors under the age
of 18 were not punishable but concluded by referring to the high rate of

unl awful deprivation of freedom Deprivation of freedom in whatever
institution it took place, should not be the principal nmeans of dealing with
young of fenders, particularly as there was a backl og of cases and procedures
were sl ow

29. He asked whether it was still the practice for convicted offenders to
keep their children with themin prison up to the age of seven. Even though
children m ght need the presence of their parents, such a period of

i ncarceration seened excessive. Wre there any facilities for such children
to attend school in prison, given that the school starting age was six?

30. Ms. PALME, noting that the witten replies to question 31 of the |ist of
i ssues indicated Ecuador's intention to inplement the Agenda for Action of the
Worl d Congress on the Conmercial Sexual Exploitation of Children held in
Stockhol min 1996, said that sonme account of the practical neasures envi saged
to follow up that intent would be welcome. As in many areas of concern to the
Conmittee, Ecuador's intentions were adnirable but what the Commttee needed
to know was how t hose intentions were being translated into reality. For
exanpl e corporal punishment was deplored but it was still widely practised in
famlies, institutions and schools. To tackle such problens a realistic

st ep-by-step plan of action was required, as well as continuous nonitoring of
pr ogress.

31. Ms. MBA, referring to the sane section of the witten replies
(paragraph 147), asked what was neant by the statement that there had been
partial compliance with the Agenda for Action of the Stockhol m Congress. It

was inportant for the Cormittee to know what actual action had been taken on
the ground to give effect to the recomrendati ons.

32. Wth regard to child | abour, the delegation had indicated that the great
majority of children at work were boys. However, it often happened that nmany
girls were also at work, although such |abour was not openly acknow edged, so
that girls rarely appeared in the | abour statistics. It would therefore be
useful for the Conmttee to have reliable disaggregated data to show the
nunber of girls enployed, not only in donestic work but at all other kinds of
wor k. Furthernore, even though child | abour was nore common in rural areas,
the greater economi c deprivation in urban and periurban areas often neant that
wor ki ng conditions and renuneration there were far worse than el sewhere. The
Conmittee woul d wel come information on what was being done to protect such
chi | dren.



CRC/ C/ SR. 481
page 8

33. Ms. OUEDRAOGO asked whether any traditional practices prejudicial to
children's health were found in Ecuador, especially anong the indigenous
popul ation. If so, what was being done to elim nate such practices? She
asked whet her any steps were being taken to prevent accidents anong

adol escents and if any statistics on the subject existed.

34. Ms. SARDENBERG asked what plans had been nade with regard to children's
health in the coastal areas of the country affected by the El Nifio phenonenon.
Furthernore, the Conmittee would appreciate updated statistics on the genera
health situation in the country. She viewed the decline in the country's
heal t h budget with concern, asking what plans the new Government had for the
health sector, with particular reference to the health budget. She would al so
like to have a conprehensive review of the status of children's health.

35. In the educational field, she welconed the fact that Ecuador had deci ded
to include teaching on human rights in the school curriculum The right to
health and the right to education were both very inportant and the best way to
ensure they were nmet was to guarantee them under the new Constitution. In
relation to the proposed integrated education system differences in curricula
woul d need to be introduced in different regions and at different socia

| evel s to ensure equality of access to education for all children in the
country, both boys and girls.

36. Some shortcom ngs in the conprehensive protection of children in the
juvenile justice systemwere apparent in the 1996 report; as |like in many
Latin American countries, many children were unlawfully detai ned not because
they had comm tted any crinme but because they lived on the fringe of society.
However, since the advent of the new Constitution would no doubt lead to a
change in that respect, she would appreciate informati on on any strategy in
pl ace for social rehabilitation

37. M. RABAH said that the report referred to the juvenile justice system
in vague ternms only and gave no specific information on the subject. He
understood fromthe report that Ecuador had no special children's courts to
deal with juvenile offenders, nor were any statistics avail able on the nunber
of girls and boys convicted of crinmes or on the nature of those crinmes. Wre
any forns of alternative punishnment for juveniles provided by the | aw? Was
life inmprisonnent of juveniles prohibited? Wre juveniles detained with
adults in prison, in particular before being brought to trial? |In conclusion
he asked how the rehabilitation centres operated, who were placed there and
how such centres were nonitored. In view of the fact that, as in nost

devel opi ng countries, the vast majority of juvenile offenders were probably
poor, he wondered whether any |egal aid was provided for them

38. The CHAI RPERSON said she was al so concerned that although, according to
par agraph 225 of the report, the details of the juvenile justice systemwere
set out in the Children's Code, the Conmittee did not have access to the Code
and found many aspects of the matter unclear. She asked whether there was any
system of social workers attached to the courts to assist juvenile offenders.
She shared M. Kol osov's concern in relation to the deprivation of freedom of
juvenil es.




CRC/ C/ SR. 481
page 9

39. Sex tourismwas a grow ng phenonenon in a nunber of devel oping
countries. She asked whether it occurred in Ecuador and if so what neasures
were in place to deal with it or prevent it.

40. Ms. MXHUANE asked whether children entering Ecuador in flight from
armed conflict were accorded refugee status. Were any subsequent efforts made
to integrate such children into Ecuadorian society or did they remain as

ref ugees?

The neeting was suspended at 11.20 a.m and resuned at 11.40 a. m

41. M. GALLEGOS CHI RI BOGA (Ecuador) said that his Government had taken
careful note of the many detail ed questions that had been asked and assured
the Committee that, where he was unable to respond i medi ately, the necessary
i nformati on would be forwarded at a | ater date.

42. In response to the question by Ms. Mkhuane regarding children affected
by arnmed conflict, he said that, as a place of refuge, Ecuador was an active
participant in the international systemfor the protection of refugees. An
advi ser from UNI CEF was currently assisting the Government to establish
statistics for child refugees escaping fromarnmed conflict in neighbouring
countries. Wthin Ecuador, refugee children were cared for jointly by the
State and NGOs, including the Ecuadorian Epi scopal Conference.

43. In response to the question by Mss Mason about sex tourism he said
that there was none in Ecuador. There had been one incident in which an Asian
man had been deported. The CGovernnent was determined not to allow the country
to be used by paedophiles for sex purposes.

44, A nunber of questions had been asked about the provisions of the
Children's Code and the detention system Rules and norms for the custody of
child offenders were established by the Code and an integrated system

i nvol ving the courts, the prisons and the social services worked to take care
of child offenders. Many of the details were described in the witten reply
to question 29 of the list of issues. The entire prison systemwas currently
undergoing reform in which special arrangenments for children would be an

i nportant el enent. The system of justice as a whole was being reviewed and a
special effort made to establish an open and humanitarian process in respect
of children. Detailed information about the rehabilitation centres for child
of fenders would be found in the witten reply. Statistics were kept of the
nunber of children in custody and would be sent to the Comrittee as soon as
possible. Child offenders and their famlies were offered psychol ogi ca
support. Help in the reform process was bei ng sought frominternationa
agenci es and ot her countries, Sweden, for exanple. Paragraph 227 of the
report gave details of the inplenmentation of a socio-educational nodel for the
rehabilitation of children and adol escents with a view to establishing

non- cust odi al programes and enhanci ng social reintegration

45, A nunber of questions had been asked about measures to remedy the havoc
caused in the coastal area by El N fio. Serious problens had arisen in the
five provinces affected by fl oods and destroyed infrastructure, but neasures
to prevent the outbreak of disease had been successful. The decentralized
nature of the health system had made it possible to deal with | ocal outbreaks



CRC/ C/ SR. 481
page 10

i medi ately. The whol e coastal area was currently undergoing reconstruction
paid for out of international |oans and national resources. An autononous
non- bureaucratic structure was in charge of nanaging the effort to rebuild not
just highways and bridges but al so schools and hospitals and other public

buil dings. El Nifio had been succeeded by La N fia, which was the opposite
phenonenon, likely to cause drought and requiring neasures to protect the

wat er supply and ot her essential services.

46. In reply to Ms. Quedraogo's question concerning the existence of
religious rituals or indigenous traditions likely to affect the health of the
Afro- Ecuadori an community, he could say there were no rituals in Ecuador

invol ving nutilation or other harnful practices, and traditional nedicine was
based entirely on natural products with generally positive effects.

47. In response to Ms. Moi's question about the prostitution of girl
children, he said that the National Council for Wnen had undertaken a study
of prostitution of both girls and boys, though the latter was rare, and
statistics based on the survey could be provided. The study also took into
account the situation of girl donestic workers.

48. In response to M. Kolosov's rather sharp criticism he said that

al though it was true that sone children went to prison with their mothers, the
i dea was to prevent them being thrown onto the streets or sent to orphanages.
The situation, though not ideal, was part of the effort to preserve the

fam ly. The whole prison systemwas geared to rehabilitation rather than

puni shment. Conjugal visits to prisoners by their husbands or w ves were
normal in Ecuador, as in other Latin American countries. There was no death
penalty or sentencing to life inprisonnment. The |ongest period of

i ncarceration that could be inposed was 16 years. |In rehabilitation centres,
child offenders were kept separate and did not mx with adults.

49. A nunber of questions had been asked about education in Ecuador. The
education systemwas integrated and universal. Basically, the problem was
that it was now 25 years old. Sone constructive changes had been nmade in
response to changing attitudes, dissatisfied with the earlier nmore formal and
traditi onal approach. As it now stood, the systemreached 95 per cent of the
children in Ecuador. The basic education curriculum had been revised to cover
instruction in human rights and the international instruments guaranteeing
them in particular the Convention on the Rights of the Child. Advice had
been sought from UNI CEF and UNESCO and civil society was encouraged to
participate. The CGovernnent's aimwas to optinize the country's resources.

It was recogni zed that a quality system needed well paid and well trained
prof essi onal teachers enjoying prospects for advancenent through further
training. Seventy per cent of the teachers in Ecuador were wonen.

50. In respect of the link between health and education stressed by

M's. Sardenberg, he pointed out that 3 million of the country's entire child
popul ation of 6 mllion were enrolled in the so-called “healthful” schools.
For children with particul ar needs, there were a nunber of special programres.
For exanpl e, schol arships were set aside for child workers and school hours
were flexible so as to allow themto study as well as work. Child |abour was,
of course, endem c in the devel oping countries. Ecuador recognized it as a



CRC/ C/ SR. 481
page 11

maj or soci al problem bound up with the shortage of jobs and with the whol e
struggl e agai nst poverty. Special progranmes were also offered for

handi capped children, although facilities were better in the towns than in the
country. In the rural sector, a tradition tended to persist whereby rura
parents hid such children away rather than seek treatnment for them In
general, good results were being achieved, sone assisted by the Wrld Bank

It mght seemcontradictory to conplain of dw ndling resources and at the sane
time draw attention to new programres. The answer was that Ecuador had gone
into debt precisely in order to deal with the problem of education and to
fulfil its undertaking to the people.

51. In response to Ms. Sardenberg, he said that the Governnment was clearly
anxi ous about the exploitation of child workers, not |east because they filled
j obs that should have gone to adult workers. A series of State actions had
been undertaken on their behalf. Labour inspectors were constantly at work
and officials fromthe Social Security Institute tried to see that they were
properly enrolled in the social security system

52. Mention had been nade of cases of children being handed over by their
parents to third parties, who had taken themto work in Venezuel a and Spain
That traffic had been investigated and bilateral agreenments reached to end the
practice. Al the children concerned had been repatriated and restored to
their famlies through the efforts of the Ecuadorian consulates in those
countries and of a number of NGOs. Civil society in Ecuador condemed al

such traffic in persons and the Government had ratified all the rel evant
conventions. There were cases in which children hired as donestic servants to
work in devel oped countries were forced into sexual servitude. C oser contro
of such enpl oynent was clearly necessary. International adoption al so needed
to be kept under close supervision. In Ecuador, agreenents had been reached
with private adoption agencies whereby all details had to be reported to the
State. If the child was not happy in his new home, the adoption was
suspended. As far as he knew, there had been no instance in which young

bri des had been bought in Ecuador to be shipped to devel oped countries. He
noted that if an adoption was ended for any reason, the child recovered his
former nanme and identity. Only married couples could adopt children; single
peopl e or honpbsexual couples were not allowed to do so.

53. Cor poral punishnent as a neans of exerting discipline was still w dely

accepted in Ecuador, but he trusted that ill-treatment of that kind would end
with nore education. There were already regul ati ons whereby any teacher who

physically harmed a child was penalized. The same was true of donestic

vi ol ence, where there had been a very positive reaction to efforts to end

vi ol ence agai nst wonen. Special units for women and children had been set up
in some police stations.

54. A question had been asked about the State's response to the probl em of
chi |l dren abandoned by m grant parents. Such children were not left to fend
for thenmselves, but it was the local authorities which dealt first with such

cases. It was the search for enploynent that took parents away and the
creation of jobs would have a great inpact on the problem State and civi
society had to work together to elimnate poverty. |In the neantinme, it was

i mpossi ble for the Governnent to deal with all the problens that arose. Yet



CRC/ C/ SR. 481
page 12

many governnment programes were highly effective. Wth support from

i nternational agencies such as the Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO,
the Worl d Food Programme (WFP) and the United Nations Conference on Trade and
Devel opnent (UNCTAD), as well as noney borrowed abroad, the Government had
been able to provide hundreds of thousands of children with school neals and
t ext books. There were also health progranmes in the schools. Another

i mportant feature was the |link between the educational system and parents.
School s for parents encouraged participation in decision-nmaking as well as
public support for the schools. Wth the help of the Inter-Anerican

Devel opment Bank, 110,000 teachers had been trained in the |ast year alone.
The | evel of education was constantly inproving and the better integration of
the heal th, education and social services systens under the new Constitution
woul d enable still further progress to be made. Many Ecuadori ans went on to
secondary school and university after their 10 years of compul sory primary
education. Wonen in particular were well represented in higher education and
in the areas of enploynent to which it gave access, especially the financia
sector.

55. The Government had allocated tens of millions of dollars, representing
particularly large suns in the Ecuadorian context, to many dozens of projects
to alleviate the problens engendered by poverty.

56. He had been instructed by his Foreign Mnister personally to deliver a
letter to the Hi gh Conmi ssioner for Human Rights on the subject of a
programe, for which the latter's cooperation was requested, to establish
Ecuador as a nodel for the inplenentation of the Declaration on the Right to
Devel opnent. Resources were requested in support of Ecuador's National Plan
which reflected the Governnment's conmtnent to achi eving objectives related to
the right to devel opnent.

57. Ms. PALME wel coned the inclusion of information on the rights of the
child in the school curriculumand, in general, the progress achieved during
the course of the past year. However, persisting problems in the area of

heal th, including the unexpectedly high infant nortality rate, could not be
tolerated and called for gradual but concrete renedies in the context of
poverty alleviation. Priority should perhaps be given, in the allocation of
fundi ng, to basic health and education, which benefited the entire popul ation
in preference to higher education with its narrower focus.

58. M s. SARDENBERG wel coned the proposed Ecuadorian project for giving
effect to the right to devel opnent, particularly since children would be the
first to benefit. The advent of a new administration and the introduction of
a new Constitution, in a context of strengthened denocracy, offered a gol den
opportunity to denonstrate Ecuador's commtnment to achieving the goals of the
Nati onal Plan, giving priority to |egislative reform review of governnent
structures and the provision of basic services. The Ecuadorian del egation's
participation in the Conmttee's plenary session could serve as a catalyst for
alerting the press and the general public to the plight of children. Ecuador
had al ready equi pped itself with a franework for action in the formof the
Nat i onal Pl an, which identified nunerous spheres of action, and the Commttee
| ooked forward to hearing the results.




CRC/ C/ SR. 481
page 13

59. Ms. MBO suggested that cooperation between national and | ocal bodies
and with NGOs active in the defence of children should be strengthened with a
view to achieving the goals of the National Plan, particularly with reference
to vul nerable children and those in difficult circunstances. She urged the
Ecuadori an administration to seek international assistance in providing
primary health care for all young people, including services for adol escents
in the areas of famly planning and drugs. She wel conmed the proposed neasures
to conbat child | abour and the econom c exploitation of both girls and boys.

60. Ms. MXHUANE called for further investigation into the suicide rate,
particul arly anong young wonen, which sone sources stated to be high
Preventive measures should be instituted where appropriate. Particular
attention should be devoted to poverty alleviation programes. The preval ence
of al cohol and drug abuse should be investigated, particularly anong street
children, and the possibility exam ned of seeking technical assistance to
conmbat the problem Environnental concerns m ght be addressed to sonme extent
by rai sing awareness anong school children. Breastfeeding should be encouraged
in order to reduce the level of infant nortality as a result of malnutrition.

61. M. RABAH felt that he had not gai ned a conprehensive understandi ng of
the juvenile justice systemand requested further information in witten form
fromthe Governnment or Mnistry of Justice.

62. Ms. OUEDRAOGO reconmended that the definition of children should be
harnmoni zed in order to correct existing inconsistencies. Education was the
driving force behind progress and therefore educational programmes shoul d be
strengthened with a view to reducing the school drop-out rate. She
congratul ated the del egation on the Foreign Mnister's right to devel opnent
initiative, which was inportant for all devel oping countries, and therefore
deserved the fullest support in order to ensure that it was carried to a
successful concl usion

63. M. KOLOSOV commended the qualities of the head of the Ecuadorian

del egation but regretted the absence of a representative at the mnisteria

| evel . The Ecuadorian report, although it had not adhered to the established
gui delines, had identified problens frankly and outlined possible solutions,
whi ch assisted the Comrittee in gaining an insight into in the situation of
children in the country. He hoped that the Ecuadorian del egation's first
meeting with the Conmittee woul d generate discussion of child-related issues
at all levels of society.

64. The CHAI RPERSON enphasi zed that Ecuador's participation in the
Committee's plenary session was no nere bureaucratic exercise but constituted
the first step in an ongoing process. Each country's situation was consi dered
in the context of its individual possibilities and constraints, and not in
conparison to others. The National Plan and the new Constitution covered many
spheres relating to children and young people, and specific |legislation could
be enacted in those areas in which the latter did not go far enough. It
appeared that one of the main challenges in inplenmenting the reconmendati ons
of the National Plan was to change entrenched cultural attitudes which
accepted child abuse.




CRC/ C/ SR. 481
page 14

65. Ecuador's next report would be due in five years' tine and would offer
an excellent opportunity to take stock of the achievenents of the

new y-el ected Governnment. Wiile it was regrettable that nobody at the

pol i cy-making | evel could be present, the Conmttee had every confidence that
the head of the delegation would bring the Conmittee's recommendations to the
attention of the appropriate authorities.

66. M. GALLEGOS CHI RIBOGA said that he was the first to regret the absence
of the Mnister for Social Wlfare. However, he hinself had been asked to
participate in the session personally by the Foreign Mnister and the

Presi dent had expressed his particular interest in the outcome. It was
stipulated in the National Hurman Rights Plan that the del egation's report and
the Conmittee's recommendati ons nust be communicated to all branches of
Governnent, the executive, the legislature and the judiciary, as well as to

t he general public. He undertook to ensure that in future the Conmttee would
receive all the requisite information in tinme to allowits nenbers to study
it. He thanked the nmenbers for their commitnment to inproving the [ ot of
children and for their concern regarding the children of Ecuador

The neeting rose at 1.01 p.m




